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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

MIDDLE DISTRICT OF GEORGIA

VALDOSTA DIVISION



KENNETH JOHNSON and JACQUELYN

JOHNSON,

KENNETH JOHNSON and JACQUELYN

JOHNSON, as Personal Representatives of

KENDRICK LAMAR JOHNSON, and

JACQUELYN JOHNSON, as Administrator

for and on Behalf of The Estate of,

KENDRICK LAMAR JOHNSON,



)

)

)

)

)



Plaintiffs

v.



)

)



BRANDEN BELL;

BRIAN BELL;

RICK BELL, in his individual capacity and

Parent of Gbit Bell and Brian Bell;

RYAN HALL;

CHRIS PRINE, in his individual and

official capacity;

FRANK SIMMONS, in his individual and

official capacity;

WILLIAM “WES” TAYLOR in his individual

and official capacities;

JAMES D. THORNTON, in his individual and

official capacities;



THE LOWNDES COUNTY SCHOOL

DISTRICT

FRED WETHERINGTON, individually

and in his official capacity as the

Chairman of Lowndes County Board of

Education individual capacities;

JAY FLOYD

RAY MCGRAW, in his official and individual

capacities;

JACK WINNINGHAM, in his official and

individual capacities;

WANDA EDWARDS, in her official and

individual capacities;

STRYDE JONES, in his official and individual

capacities;

AARON PRITCHETT, in his official and

individual capacities;

LOGAN HENDERSON, in his official and



)

)
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)
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)

)



)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)
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individual capacities;

RANDY LIGHTSEY, in his official and

)

individual capacities;

MICHAEL ADAMS, in his official and

)

individual capacities;

JACK PRIDDY, in his official and individual )

capacities;

KERRY QUINN, in his official and individual )

capacities;

CHRISTI GRIFFIN, in her official and

)

individual capacities;

BRYCE WHITENER, in his official and

)

individual capacities;

CHRISTOPHER BURKE, in his official and

)

individual capacities;

ROY BLACK in his official and individual

)

capacities;

HOWARD FISHER, in his official individual )

capacities;

MARK MASKULE, in his

)

official and individual capacities;

ROY HART, in his official and individual

)

capacities;

JOHN MARION, in his official and individual )

capacities;

WES HORNE, in his official and individual

)

capacities;

AGENT KRISTEN PERRY, in her official

)

and individual capacities;

LINDSAY MARCHANT, in his official

)

and individual capacities;

STEVE CALLAHAN, in his

)

official and individual capacities;

AMY BRASWELL,

)

in her official and individual capacities;

STEVE TURNER, in his official

)

and individual capacities;

DR. MARYANNE GAFFNEY-KRAFT,

)

in her official and individual capacities;

RODNEY BRYAN, in his official and

)

individual capacities;

STEVE 0WENS d/b/a OWENS TRANSPORT )

SERVICE; LARRY HANSON, in his official

and individual capacities;

)

CITY OF VALDOSTA, GEORGIA, a

Municipal Corporation;

)

JOE DOES, an unknown persons; and

JANE DOES, unknown persons,

)

Defendants.



)
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NOW COME Plaintiffs KENNETH JOHNSON and JACQUELYN JOHNSON, who

pursuant to Rule 15(a) of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure, and prior to the filing of any

responsive pleading or within 20 days after the original pleading to be amended was served,

amends their complaint as a matter of course to add as an alternative theory of recovery and in

the following particulars, shows this Court the following:

1.

By striking the PRELIMINARY STATEMENT in its entirety, and in substitution

thereof, amending same to read as follows:



“PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

Plaintiffs KENNETH JOHNSON and JACQUELYN JOHNSON are the parents of

KENDRICK LAMAR JOHNSON, who died while attending school on or about January 10,

2013 at Lowndes High School located in Valdosta, Lowndes County, Georgia, bring this action

against Defendants BRANDON BELL, BRIAN BELL, and RYAN HALL, each of whom were

assisted each other, as well as, by certain unknown individuals, hereinafter referred to as JANE

DOE I and JOHN DOE I, for various actions or conduct which led to or directly caused the death

of KENDRICK LAMAR JOHNSON. Each of the afore-named defendants are liable to Plaintiffs

for the wrongful death of their minor son, KENDRICK LAMAR JOHNSON.

Thereafter, the aforesaid defendants, along with each of the defendants named in the

above styled caption, deliberately and unlawfully conspired to hide and cover up: (a) the

perpetration of an assault and other circumstances upon Kendrick Lamar Johnson on or about

January 10, 2013, (b) their involvement as assailants or persons who assisted in causing said

assault or the death of KENDRICK LAMAR JOHNSON, ( c) the identities of persons who

directly or indirectly contributed to or assisted in causing the assault and ultimately the death of
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KENDRICK LAMAR JOHNSON, and (d) the involvement of each other as participants in a

conspiracy to unlawfully interfere with an investigation by law enforcement agencies that

purportedly was designed to discover the true circumstances surrounding the death of

KENDRICK LAMAR JOHNSON.

Moreover, the aforesaid defendants, along with each of the defendants named in the

above styled caption, deliberately and unlawfully fraudulently misled plaintiffs KENNETH

JOHNSON and JACQUELYN JOHNSON as to the true time and date of the death of Kendrick

Lamar Johnson through their aforesaid conspiracy to hide and cover up the perpetration of the

aforesaid assault and other abuses arising from the misconduct perpetrated upon Kendrick Lamar

Johnson on or about January 10, 2013.

In addition, not only did each of the defendants identified in the above styled action,

maliciously, conspire and engage in a deliberate and corrupt effort to cover up the involvement

of Defendants as assailants and co-conspirators, but the aforesaid conspiracy also deliberately,

maliciously and unlawfully interfered with the rights of Plaintiffs KENNETH JOHNSON and

JACQUELYN JOHNSON to have access to the courts of this state and thereby frustrate their

desire to seek legal redress. Accordingly, each of the defendants named herein are liable to said

plaintiffs for the damages they have suffered due to a civil conspiracy carried out by them and

which sought to interfere with their due process and equal protection rights under the

Constitution for the State of Georgia. Accordingly, Plaintiffs KENNETH JOHNSON and

JACQUELYN JOHNSON seek equitable relief in the form of declaratory judgment and

injunctive relief against all state actors, including but not limited to Defendants DR.

MARYANNE GAFFNEY-KRAFT, and RODNEY BRYAN, as well as all other defendants

named herein, and who are sued in their individual capacity, as well as, official capacity as

members of the Georgia Bureau of Investigation.
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In the course of interfering with the rights of Plaintiffs KENNETH JOHNSON and

JACQUELYN JOHNSON to have access to the courts and thus frustrate their desire to seek

legal redress, each of the defendants have caused said plaintiffs to suffer great physical and

emotional pain and, as a consequence, are liable for intentional infliction of emotional distress,

as well as, other state law violations.

Plaintiffs KENNETH JOHNSON and JACQUELYN JOHNSON now bring this action

under 42 U.S.C. §§1983 and 1985 as against EACH AND EVERY DEFENDANT named herein

to seek redress for the aforesaid violations of rights of KENDRICK LAMAR JOHNSON and the

significant damages he suffered.

Each of the plaintiffs herein also sues the each of the Defendants named herein pursuant

to O.C.G.A. §§19-7-1(a) and 51-4-5 to recover for the loss of services of KENDRICK LAMAR

JOHNSON, the funeral expenses of KENDRICK LAMAR JOHNSON, as well as, compensation

for the pain and suffering experienced by KENDRICK LAMAR JOHNSON.”

2.

By re-labeling “TWELVETH CAUSE OF ACTION” following ¶ 139 to read “

SEVENTH CAUSE OF ACTION.”

3.

By re-labeling “THIRTEENTH CAUSE OF ACTION” following ¶ 146 to read

“EIGHTH CAUSE OF ACTION.”

4.

By re-labeling “FOURTEENTH CAUSE OF ACTION” following ¶ 158 to read

“NINETH CAUSE OF ACTION.”

5.

By re-labeling “SECOND CAUSE OF ACTION” following ¶ 208 to read “TENTH
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CAUSE OF ACTION.”

6.

By re-labeling “THIRD CAUSE OF ACTION” following ¶ 212 to read “ELEVENTH

CAUSE OF ACTION.”

7.

By re-labeling “FOURTH CAUSE OF ACTION” following ¶ 217 to read “TWELFTH

CAUSE OF ACTION.”

8.

By re-labeling “FIFTH CAUSE OF ACTION” following ¶ 223 to read “THIRTEENTH

CAUSE OF ACTION.”

9.

By re-labeling “TWELVETH CAUSE OF ACTION” following ¶ 230 to read

“FOURTEENTH CAUSE OF ACTION.”

10.

By re-labeling “THIRTEENTH CAUSE OF ACTION” following ¶ 247 to read

“FIFTEENTH CAUSE OF ACTION.”

11.

By re-labeling “14TH CAUSE OF ACTION” following ¶ 257 to read “SIXTEENTH

CAUSE OF ACTION.”

12.

By re-labeling “15TH CAUSE OF ACTION” following ¶ 262 to read “SEVENTEENTH

CAUSE OF ACTION.”

13.

By re-labeling “1 6TH CAUSE OF ACTION” following ¶ 266 to read “EIGHTEENTH
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CAUSE OF ACTION.”

14.

By re-labeling “17TH CAUSE OF ACTION” following ¶ 270 to read “NINETEENTH

CAUSE OF ACTION.”

15.

By re-labeling “18TH CAUSE OF ACTION” following ¶ 274 to read “TWENTIETH

CAUSE OF ACTION.”

16.

By re-labeling “19TH Cause of Action” following ¶ 278 to read “TWENTY-FIRST

CAUSE OF ACTION.”

17.

By striking each and every paragraph and count following ¶ 267of the “19TH Cause of

Action” through to ¶ 286 and substituting same with the following:

“279. The Plaintiffs re-allege and incorporate herein, as if set forth in full, each and every

allegation contained in the preceding paragraphs and further allege:

280. At all times material to this Complaint, Defendant LOWNDES COUNTY

SCHOOL DISTRICT acted through its agents, employees, teachers, administrators, staff and

representatives, including but not limited to Defendants FRED WETHERINGTON, WES

TAYLOR and JAY FLOYD, each of whom were acting under color of state statutes, ordinances,

regulations, customs and usages of the State of Georgia and, in their actions and appearances,

pursuant to the scope of their authority.

281. At all times material to this Complaint, KENDRICK LAMAR JOHNSON was a

seventeen (17) year old male child who was in the tenth (10th) grade and attending Lowndes

High School located in Valdosta, Georgia. All conditions precedent to the filing of this
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Complaint have occurred, been satisfied, or been waived in that written notice has been

previously provided to the Defendants.

Facts Common to All Remaing Counts

282. During the school year of 2012 – 2013, KENDRICK LAMAR JOHNSON, an

African-American student, was attending Lowndes High School in Valdosta, Lowndes County,

Georgia. To this end, there existed a “special relationship” between the KENDRICK LAMAR

JOHNSON and the Defendants LOWNDES COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT, WES TAYLOR

and JAY FLOY owed or had a duty to properly supervise the activities of all students who

were attending Lowndes High School and to protect KENDRICK LAMAR JOHNSON, who was

in its care on or about January 10, 2013.

283. Approximately one (1) year before the aforesaid incident of January 10, 2013,

Defendant LOWNDES COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT, through its agents, employees,

teachers, administrators, staff or representatives were on notice that KENDRICK LAMAR

JOHNSON had been senselessly assaulted by another student who also attended Lowndes High

School. In this regard, Plaintiff’s representative, Plaintiff JACQUELYN JOHNSON,

complained to administrative personnel of the Defendant LOWNDES COUNTY SCHOOL

DISTRICT that her son, KENDRICK LAMAR JOHNSON, had reported to her that while on a

school bus that had traveled to another school for an athletic competition that was sanctioned and

arranged by Defendant LOWNDES COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT, he had been victimized by

Brian Bell, a fellow student at Lowndes High School and teammate on the high school’s

football team. Plaintiff JACQUELYN JOHNSON also indicated to said administrative

personnel and school officials at Defendants’ Lowndes High School that, according to her son,

he was improperly accused and blamed for instigating the aforesaid fight on the school bus.

Accordingly, Plaintiff JACQUELYN JOHNSON requested that the aforesaid said administrative

personnel and school officials at Lowndes High School allow her to watch the video recording
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from the school bus’s surveillance system, but despite her right to do so, said request was

summarily denied by representatives of the Defendant LOWNDES COUNTY SCHOOL

DISTRICT.

284.



In connection with and following Plaintiff JACQUELYN JOHNSON’s lodging of



the foregoing complaint, KENDRICK LAMAR JOHNSON was subjected to undeserved

punishment, humiliation and various forms of mistreatment by members of the coaching staff

of the Lowndes High School football program.

285. Upon information and belief, the aforesaid dispute between Brian Bell and

KENDRICK LAMAR JOHNSON was not properly investigated nor handled in an appropriate

manner, and as a consequence, was allowed to remain unsettled and unresolved, all of which

was known to or should have been known to officials and personnel employed by Defendant

LOWNDES COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT. Moreover, upon information and belief,

KENDRICK LAMAR JOHNSON reported to plaintiffs that subsequent to the aforesaid dispute

between he and Brian Bell, Brandon Bell, older brother to Brian Bell and also a student at said

Lowndes High School , confronted him (KENDRICK LAMAR JOHNSON) and stated to him

that, “it ain’t over.”

286. In connection with the aforementioned dispute and resulting mistreatment of

KENDRICK LAMAR JOHNSON, Defendants thereafter failed to properly supervise and protect

said Plaintiff from further mistreatment and harassment, including, but not limited to, other

assaults and fatal injuries. Upon information and belief, Defendant SCHOOL DISTRICT s’

failure to properly supervise its student population included its failure to properly monitor the

activities of students throughout all areas of the Lowndes High School campus, including but not

limited to locker rooms and utility closets, as well as its failure to maintain a
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